
AGENDA 
CITY OF PEARLAND 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

      Henry Fuertes           Daniel Tunstall 
 P&Z CHAIRPERSON  P&Z VICE-CHAIRPERSON 

COMMISSIONERS 

   Mary Starr     Derrick Reed 

Thomas Duncan  Ginger McFadden 

June 15, 2015 6:00 p.m. 

In accordance with the Texas Open Meeting Act the Agenda is posted for public information, at all 
times, for at least 72 hours preceding the scheduled time of the meeting on the bulletin board 
located at the front entrance of the City Hall, 3519 Liberty Drive. 



 
 

II. Consent Agenda Items 
 

All items listed under the “Consent Agenda” are considered to be 

routine and require little or no deliberation by the P&Z Commission. 

These items will be enacted / approved by one motion unless a 

commissioner requests separate action on an item, in which event 

the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered 

by separate action (ix. Matters removed from Consent Agenda). 

Approval of the Consent Agenda enacts the items of legislation. 



A. Approval of Minutes 

1. Approve the Minutes of the June 1, 2015 P&Z meeting.



 
 

 
 

 
P&Z Regular Meeting Minutes 

June 1, 2015 
Page 1 of 3 

 

 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE PLANNING AND ZONING 
COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS, MONDAY, MAY 18, 2015, AT 
6:00 P.M., HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS,  CITY HALL,  3519 LIBERTY 
DRIVE, PEARLAND, TEXAS 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes opened the meeting for the P&Z Regular Meeting 
at 6:53 p.m. 
 
In attendance were: 
 
P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes 
P&Z Vice Chairperson Daniel Tunstall 
P&Z Member Derrick Reed 
P&Z Member Mary Starr 
P&Z Member Thomas Duncan 
P&Z Member Ginger McFadden 
 
Also in attendance were Interim City Planner Ian Clowes, Director of Community 
Development Lata Krishnarao, Associate Planner Vince Hustead, Deputy City Attorney 
Lawrence Provins, City Engineer Sue Polka, Assistant City Engineer Richard Mancilla, 
and Office Assistant Jennifer Tatum. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA     
P&Z Vice Chairperson Daniel Tunstall made the motion to approve all the items on the 
consent agenda, and Commissioner Derrick Reed seconded the motion. 
 
The vote was 6 to 0.  The Consent agenda was approved. 
 
CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE ACTION – APPROVAL OF MINUTES AND EXCUSE 
OF ABSENCE 

 
Approve the Minutes of the May 18, 2015 P&Z Regular Meeting, held at 6:00 p.m. 
 
Excuse the absence of Commissioner Henry Fuertes and Ginger McFadden from the 
May 18, 2015 regular meeting.  

 
MATTERS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 
None 
 
NEW BUSINESS  
 



 
 

 
 

 
P&Z Regular Meeting Minutes 

June 1, 2015 
Page 2 of 3 

 

 

 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 

 
Commissioners Activity Report – P&Z Vice Chairperson Daniel Tunstall stated he would 
like to see all pawn shops in General Commercial (GC) require a Conditional Use 
Permit (CUP). P&Z Commissioner Thomas Duncan stated he attended a TXDOT 
meeting about medians and encouraged the city to be involved with this project along 
Broadway. Mr. Tunstall inquired about the median that was put in front of Jamison 
Landing and Taco Bell on Broadway. Assistant City Engineer Richard Mancilla stated 
that a new commercial business drove this project. Discussion ensued about medians. 
Mr. Fuertes introduced new employees Alex Rodriguez, Planning Technician, Claudell 
Bradby, Associate Planner, and Sue Polka, City Engineer.  
  
P&Z Commissioners Survey Results – Mr. Clowes went over the feedback and 
addressed concerns. A list of action items was made and is as follows: 
 

1. Place articles that were sent out to P&Z on the agenda under discussion items.  
2. Update the commission on upcoming projects and developments that were not 

seen by the commission. 
3. Work on specific standards for amenitized detention. Create more recreational 

options within the detention areas. 
4. Create guidelines for pipeline setbacks specifically for residential lots. 
5. Bring back the P&Z Strategic Plan. 
6. Compare completed project with the approved plan. Help in future decision 

making for newly proposed plans.  
7. Bring in speaker to discuss land use and land value. 

 
Zoning Update – Mr. Clowes stated the CUP for auto parts was approved and the CUP 
for e-cigarette shop was denied at the last P&Z meeting. Items will go for first reading 
before City Council on June 8, 2015. 
 
Comprehensive Plan Update Joint Workshop – July 6, 2015 – Ms. Krishnarao stated 
they were making progress and that it should be sent out at the end of the week. 
 
Next JPH/P&Z Meeting, June 15, 2015 – Mr. Clowes stated this would be a large 
agenda. 

 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes adjourned the P&Z Regular meeting at 7:28 p.m. 



 
 

 
 

 
P&Z Regular Meeting Minutes 

June 1, 2015 
Page 3 of 3 

 

 

 
 
These minutes were respectfully submitted by: 
 

____________________________________ 
Jennifer Tatum, Office Assistant 

 
Minutes approved as submitted and/or corrected on this 15th day of June 2015, A.D. 
 
      ____________________________________ 

Henry Fuertes, Chairperson 
 



III. Matters Removed From 
Consent Agenda



IV. New Business



A. Conditional Use Permit 
No. 2015-07

A request of Valle Kauniste, applicant and owner; for approval 
of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow for a Micro-Brewery 
use in the Light Industrial (M-1) zoning district on approximately 
1.07 acres of land



   
 

 
Page 1 of 1 – 6/15/2015    

 

 

JOINT PUBLIC HEARING 
THE CITY COUNCIL CITY AND THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION OF 

THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS, 
MONDAY, JUNE 15, 2015 AT 6:30 P.M. 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS - CITY HALL-3519 LIBERTY DRIVE 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. PURPOSE OF HEARING 

 
Conditional Use Permit Application No. 2015-07 
 
A request of Valle Kauniste, applicant and owner; for approval of a Conditional Use 
Permit (CUP) to allow for a Micro-Brewery use in the Light Industrial (M-1) zoning 
district on approximately 1.07 acres of land, to wit: 
 
Legal Description:  Being a 1.0699 acres tract of land out of Lot 1, Block 1 of Rice 
Drier Road Development subdivision as recorded in Plat 2015009262 of Brazoria 
County Plat Records, Brazoria County, Texas and being situated in the H.T. & 
B.R.R Co. Survey, Abstract 232, Brazoria County, Texas.  

 
General Location:  4000 Block of Rice Drier Road, Pearland, TX 
 

III. APPLICATION INFORMATION AND CASE SUMMARY 
 

A. STAFF REPORT 
B. APPLICANT PRESENTATION 
C. STAFF WRAP UP 

 
IV. PERSONS WISHING TO SPEAK FOR OR AGAINST THE PROPOSED 

REQUEST 
 
V. COUNCIL/PLANNING COMMISSION/STAFF DISCUSSION 
 
VI. ADJOURNMENT 
 

This site is accessible to disabled individuals.  For special assistance, please call 
Young Lorfing, City Secretary, at 281-652-1655 prior to the meeting so that 
appropriate arrangements can be made. 



 

1 | P a g e  

 

 

Staff Report 
To:  City Council and Planning and Zoning Commission 

From:  Planning Department (KW) 

Date:  June 2, 2015 
 
Re: Conditional Use Permit Application Number 2015-07 

 A request of Valle Kauniste, applicant and owner; for approval 
of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow for a Microbrewery 
Use located within the Light Industrial (M-1) zoning district on 
approximately 1.069 acres of land, located at the 4000 Block of 
Rice Drier Road, Pearland, TX. 

 

Summary of Request 

The applicant is requesting approval of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow for a 
Microbrewery located in the Light Industrial (M-1) district on approximately 1.069 acres 
located at approximately 4111 Rice Drier Road. The property is undeveloped, and it is 
located north of Rice Drier Road, west of Main Street. The applicant proposes to 
construct a 2,000 square foot building that will be used as a facility to brew and self-
distribute beer and will include a tasting room with an area for retail sale of the product 
produced on site. Ancillary uses to the brewery include rental of the facility for special 
events such as birthdays and wedding receptions. A parking area will be constructed as 
part of the site improvements, which will include landscaping and tree plantings along 
Rice Drier Road.   

The use is classified as Microbrewery in the land use matrix and is defined as a facility 
in which beer, wine, or other alcoholic beverages are brewed, fermented, or distilled for 
distribution and consumption, and which possess the appropriate licenses from the 
state of Texas. These are typically much smaller establishments and independently 
owned.  To be classified as a microbrewery, the facility must include a restaurant, bar, 
lounge, or tasting room as a complementary use to the production facility.  

This use was introduced in February of 2015 to the UDC, to address a newly popular 
use that the previous version of the UDC did not adequately address.  

 

 



 

2 | P a g e  

 

 

Recommendation  

Staff recommends approval of the request to allow for a Microbrewery on the 1.069-acre 
site in the M-1 zoning district for the following reasons: 

1. The proposed CUP for Microbrewery use is compatible with other existing and 
proposed land uses within the surrounding area, which includes land zoned for 
commercial and light industrial uses.  

2. The proposed facility meets the specified conditions of a Microbrewery as 
described in the Unified Development Code (UDC). The proposed facility is less 
than 15,000 square feet, and it includes an associated tasting room and retail 
operation that will be open to the public.   

3. The Microbrewery facility will not significantly impact surrounding properties. 
 

4. The Microbrewery use, along with an approved CUP, will be in conformance with 
both the UDC and the Comprehensive Plan.   

 
 
Staff Recommended Conditions 
 

1. A detailed site plan is required that shows parking, outdoor areas, fencing, 
landscaping, and other site improvements, prior to the first reading of the 
ordinance.  For this use, one parking space is required for every 200 square feet 
of gross floor area. A minimum of 10 parking spaces is required.  

 
2. As a condition for approval, all proposed buildings shall have a masonry façade 

where visible from any public street (east, south, and west facing facades). 
Masonry is defined as brick, stone, brick veneer, custom treated tilt wall, 
decorative or textured concrete block, split face block, and stucco.  
 

Public Notification 
 
Staff sent public notices, comment forms and a vicinity map to the applicant, the owner 
of the property and to property owners within 200 feet of the subject property under 
consideration for the CUP. Additionally, a legal notice of the public hearing was 
published in the local newspaper, and a notification sign was placed on the property by 
the applicant.   

 

 



 

3 | P a g e  

 

Opposition to or Support of Proposed Request 

Staff has not received any returned notices in opposition to or in support of the 
proposed Conditional Use Permit request.   

 

Site History 

The subject property is undeveloped. The property was annexed into the City of 
Pearland in 1959. The following table identifies surrounding uses and zoning districts. 

 

 

Conformance with the Thoroughfare Plan 

The subject property has street frontage on Rice Drier Road, which is classified as a 
local street with a required right-of-way width of 70 feet. The right-of-way is of sufficient 
width. 

 

Conformance with the Unified Development Code 

At the time of development, all requirements of the Unified Development Code will have 
been met or exceeded per the requirements of this CUP application.  

Light Industrial (M-1) Area Regulations 

Size of Lots Required Existing Lot Dimensions  

Minimum Lot Size 40,000 sf. 46,606 sf. 

Minimum Lot Width 150 ft. 180 ft. 

Minimum Lot Depth 150 ft. 282.5 ft. 

 

 

 Zoning Land Use 
North General Commercial (GC) Hotel 
South Light Industrial (M-1) Warehouse 
East Light Industrial (M-1) Restaurant (With Drive-Thru) 
West Light Industrial (M-1) Multi-tenant Office Warehouse 



 

4 | P a g e  

 

Platting Status 

The subject property is platted as a portion of Rice Drier Road Development. The plat 
was recorded with Brazoria County on March 4, 2015. 

 

Availability of Utilities 

According to GIS, the subject property is served by an 8-inch water line located along 
the southern property line and an 8-inch gravity main located across Rice Drier Road.  

 

Impact on Existing and Future Development 

The proposed CUP will not significantly impact surrounding properties or developments, 
as the property is surrounded by mostly commercial and light industrial uses or 
undeveloped tracts proposed for light industrial uses on the City of Pearland Future 
Land Use Map and Zoning Map. The proposed tree plantings and masonry façade will 
enhance the visual impact of the facility compared to surrounding properties. The 
applicant also is proposing to preserve an old growth oak tree which currently exists 
near the center of the property.   

 

Additional Comments 

The City’s Development Review Committee (DRC) has reviewed the request, and there 
were no additional comments from other departments at the time of this report. 

 

Exhibits 

1. Aerial Map 

2. Zoning Map 

3. Future Land Use Map 

4. Notification Map 

5. Notification List 

6. Applicant Packet 



HALIK

MAIN ST
RICE DRIER RD

4407

4407

4110

1710

1912

4111

3919

3919

1916

3919

4111
4111

4111

4111

4407

3919

3919

3919

1909

1909

1909

1909
1909

1909

1909

4111

1909

3919
4035

1915

4111
4101

4101
4101

4101

4101

4101

4101

4101

4101

4101

1909

4111

4405

4111

4111

1814

1833

4101

18291827
18251823

3925

1903

1722

1821

18554206

4210

4111

4101

1702

4021

4021

3931

1701

1705

1715

1907

1837

AERIAL MAP

CUP 2015-07

4000 Block of
Rice Drier Rd.

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 193 feet
JUNE 2015
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Site

Exhibit 1



M-1

GC

PUD

HALIK

MAIN ST
RICE DRIER RD

4407

4407

4110

1710

1912

4111

3919

3919

1916

3919

4111
4111

4111

4111

4407

3919

3919

3919

1909

1909

1909

1909
1909

1909

1909

4111

1909

3919
4035

1915

4111
4101

4101
4101

4101

4101

4101

4101

4101

4101

1909

4111

4405

4111

4111

1814

1833

18291827
18251823

3925

1903

1722

1821

18554206

4210

4111

4101

4101

1702

4021

4021

3931

1701

1705

1715

1907

1837

ZONING MAP

CUP 2015-07

4000 Block of
Rice Drier Rd.

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 193 feet
JUNE 2015
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Site

Exhibit 2



Industrial

Business Commercial

Public / Semi-Public

HALIK

MAIN ST
RICE DRIER RD

4407

4407

4110

1710

1912

4111

3919

3919

1916

3919

4111
4111

4111

4111

4407

3919

3919

3919

1909

1909

1909

1909
1909

1909

1909

4111

1909

3919
4035

1915

4111
4101

4101
4101

4101

4101

4101

4101

4101

4101

1909

4111

4405

4111

4111

1814

1833

18291827

3925

1903

1722

1821

18554206

4210

4111

4101

4101

1702

4021

4021

3931

1701

1705

1715

1907

1837

FLUP MAP

CUP 2015-07

4000 Block of
Rice Drier Rd.

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 193 feet
JUNE 2015
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Site

Exhibit 3



HALIK

MAIN ST
RICE DRIER RD

4407

4407

1912

4111

3919

3919

1916

3919

4111

4407

3919

3919

3919

1909

1909

1909

1909
1909

1909

1909

4111

1909

3919
4035

1915

1909

4111

4405

4111

4111

1833

18291827
18251823

3925

1903

1821

1855

4111

1702

4021

4021

3931

1701

1705

1715

1907

1837

NOTIFICATION MAP

CUP 2015-07

4000 Block of
Rice Drier Rd.

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 193 feet
JUNE 2015
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Site

Exhibit 4



Exhibit 5

CUP 2015-07 Microbrewery at 4000 Block of Rice Drier Rd. 

Owner Address City State Zip

BAYOU PROPERTIES CO 6002 OSBORN ST HOUSTON TX 77033

PEARL HOSPITALITY INC 1702 N MAIN ST PEARLAND TX 77581

RICE DRYER ROAD PROPERTIES LLC 1021 N MAIN ST PEARLAND TX 77581

VALLE KAUNISTE 3004 SUMMIT SPRINGS PEARLAND TX 77581



iclowes
Typewritten Text

iclowes
Typewritten Text
EXHIBIT 6

































B. Conditional Use Permit No. 2015-08 

A request of Christine Lewis, authorized agent for Verizon 
Wireless, applicant; on behalf of Susie M. Lorance, owner; 
for approval of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow 
for the construction of a Wireless Communications Tower 
in the Spectrum - 3 (S3) zoning district on approximately 
11.67 acres of land



   
 

 
Page 1 of 1 – 6/15/2015    

 

 

JOINT PUBLIC HEARING 
THE CITY COUNCIL CITY AND THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION OF 

THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS, 
MONDAY, JUNE 15, 2015 AT 6:30 P.M. 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS - CITY HALL-3519 LIBERTY DRIVE 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. PURPOSE OF HEARING 

 
Conditional Use Permit Application No. 2015-08 
 
A request of Christine Lewis, authorized agent for Verizon Wireless, applicant; on 
behalf of Susie M. Lorance, owner; for approval of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 
to allow for the construction of a Wireless Communications Tower in the Spectrum 
- 3 (S3) zoning district on approximately 11.67 acres of land, to wit: 
 
Legal Description:  Being Lot 9 in Block “P” of Allison Richey Gulf Coast Home 
Co. Survey and part of Suburban Gardens, a subdivision in Harris County, Texas 
according to the map or plat thereof recorded in Volume 3, Page 40 of the map 
records of Harris County, Texas, save and except the westerly ten feet (10’) 
conveyed to the county of Harris for the widening of Hooper Road in instrument 
recorded in Volume 988, Page 715 of the deed records of Harris County, Texas.  

 
General Location:  15115 Hooper Road, Pearland, TX 
 

III. APPLICATION INFORMATION AND CASE SUMMARY 
 

A. STAFF REPORT 
B. APPLICANT PRESENTATION 
C. STAFF WRAP UP 

 
IV. PERSONS WISHING TO SPEAK FOR OR AGAINST THE PROPOSED 

REQUEST 
 
V. COUNCIL/PLANNING COMMISSION/STAFF DISCUSSION 
 
VI. ADJOURNMENT 
 

This site is accessible to disabled individuals.  For special assistance, please call 
Young Lorfing, City Secretary, at 281-652-1655 prior to the meeting so that 
appropriate arrangements can be made. 



 

1 | P a g e  

 

 
Staff Report 
To:  City Council and Planning and Zoning Commission 

From:  Planning Department 

Date:  June 2, 2015 
 
Re: Conditional Use Permit Application Number 2015-08 

 A request of Christine Lewis, authorized agent for Verizon 
Wireless, applicant; on behalf of Susie M. Lorance, owner; for 
approval of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow for the 
construction of a Wireless Communications Tower in the 
Spectrum - 3 (S3) zoning district on approximately 11.67 acres  

of land, located at 15115 Hooper Road, Pearland, TX. 

Summary of Request 

The applicant is requesting approval of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow for a 
new Cellular Telecommunications Tower located in the Spectrum District S3:  The 
Mixed Use-High Density Residential District (SP3), on an approximately 11.67 acre 
tract.  The proposed cell tower site will encompass close to 3,600 square feet located 
east of Hooper Road, south of Fruge Road. The property is currently undeveloped. 
Verizon Wireless proposes to construct a 117-foot tall monopole tower and a pre-
manufactured equipment cabinet skid with generator, antennas, and cabling. The 
proposed tower would occupy 60-foot by 60-foot area at the southwest corner tract. The 
proposed site is located within the 100-year floodplain.  

 

Recommendation  

Staff recommends approval of the request to allow for a Cellular Telecommunications 
Tower on the 3,600 square foot site in the SP3 zoning district for the following reasons: 

1. The proposed tower will address a coverage gap that currently exists within the 
area of the McHard Road and Kirby Drive intersection.  

2. The applicant provided the specified additional information required to evaluate 
the appropriateness of the CUP request including an inventory of Verizon’s 

 



 

2 | P a g e  

 

existing towers, a site plan, a report from a structural engineer that documents 
the design and capacity of the tower, and documentation of the applicant’s effort 
to co-locate on an existing wireless telecommunications tower. Construction of a 
new tower appears to be the best alternative for addressing the service needs of 
Verizon customers in this area.  

3. The applicant has provided a letter of intent to lease excess space on the tower if 
structurally and technically feasible. 

4. The proposed facility meets the specified conditions of a Cellular 
Telecommunications Tower as described in the Unified Development Code 
(UDC) and is in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan with an approved 
CUP.  

 
Staff Recommended Conditions 
 

1. As a condition for approval, screening shall meet the requirements of the UDC.  
 

2. The access drive to the facility shall be paved with either concrete or asphalt.  
 
 

Public Notification 

Staff sent public notices, comment forms and a vicinity map to the applicant, the owner 
of the property and to property owners within 200 feet of the subject property under 
consideration for the CUP. Additionally, a legal notice of the public hearing was 
published in the local newspaper, and a notification sign was placed on the property by 
the applicant.   

 

Opposition to or Support of Proposed Request 

Staff has not received any returned notices in opposition to or in support of the 
proposed Conditional Use Permit request.   

 

Site History 

The subject property is undeveloped. The property was annexed into the City of 
Pearland in 2005. The following table identifies surrounding uses and zoning districts. 



 

3 | P a g e  

 

 

 

 

Conformance with the Thoroughfare Plan 

The subject property will have access via a 12-foot driveway within a 20-foot utility 
easement that connects to Hooper Road. The adjacent portion of Hooper Road is not 
included on the Thoroughfare Plan. However, Hooper Road north of Fruge Road is 
classified as a Major Collector Street – To Be Widened, and Fruge Road is also 
classified as a Major Collector Street – To Be Widened. Both streets require a total 
right-of-way of 80-feet.  

 

Conformance with the Unified Development Code 

At the time of development, all requirements of the Unified Development Code will have 
been met or exceeded per the requirements of this CUP application. The following table 
summarizes the lot requirements within the zoning district. However, the subject 
property does not include the entire tract. 

Spectrum District S3 (SP3) Area Regulations 

Size of Lots Required Existing Lot Dimensions  

Minimum Lot Size 43,560 sf. 508,345 sf. 

Minimum Lot Width 100 ft. 630 ft. 

Minimum Lot Depth 200 ft. 808 ft. 

 

 

 Zoning Land Use 
North Mixed Use-High Density Residential 

(SP3) 
Undeveloped, Rural Residential 

across Fruge Road 
South Planned Unit Development 

(PUD) 
Undeveloped 

East Mixed Use-High Density Residential 
(SP3) 

Undeveloped 

West Light Industrial and Science & 
Technology (SP4) 

Pipe Processing or Storage Yard 



 

4 | P a g e  

 

Platting Status 

The subject property is not platted. A plat will need to be approved by the city and 
recorded with Harris County prior to the release of any building permits.  

 

Availability of Utilities 

According to GIS, the subject property does not have direct access to the City of 
Pearland sanitary sewer system or water distribution system. The proposed 
development is not anticipated to require these services at this time.  

 

Impact on Existing and Future Development 

The proposed CUP will not significantly impact surrounding properties or developments. 
The property is surrounded by undeveloped and under-developed properties that are 
proposed for a visually cohesive district that allows for diverse land uses on the Future 
Land Use Plan. By locating the telecommunication tower at the edge of the tract, the 
remainder of the tract is preserved for development of a more comprehensively 
planned, mixed-use project in the future. The end users of the mixed-use, high density 
residential, commercial, and light industrial science and technology related uses within a 
business park or corporate campus as proposed for this area may benefit from the 
improved service that the cellular tower will provide. Appropriate screening of the 
equipment and a paved access drive will enhance aesthetic standards and help mitigate 
incompatibility with future development projects.  

 

Additional Comments 

The City’s Development Review Committee (DRC) has reviewed the request, and there 
were no additional comments from other departments at the time of this report. 

 

Exhibits 

1. Aerial Map 

2. Zoning Map 

3. Future Land Use Map 

4. Notification Map 



 

5 | P a g e  

 

5. Notification List 

6. Applicant Packet 



KIRBY DR

FRUGE RD

HOOPER RD

1751

1530

1402

11271123

1630

1414

1818

1802

15110

15015

11711

1171111713

15029

14933

15041

15029

15003

14923

11713
11625

11617

11613
11621

11629
11637

11641

11633

11600
11711

11711

11711

1161111613

11711

11701

AERIAL MAP

CUP 2015-08

15115 Hooper Rd.

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 386 feet
JUNE 2015
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Site

Exhibit 1



PUD

SP3

SP4SP5

KIRBY DR

FRUGE RD

HOOPER RD

1751

1530

1402

11271123

1630

1414

1818

1802

15110

15015

11711

1171111713

15029

14933

15041

15029

15003

14923

11713
11625

11617

11613
11621

11629
11637

11641

11633

11600
11711

11711

11711

1161111613

11711

11701

ZONING MAP

CUP 2015-08

15115 Hooper Rd.

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 386 feet
JUNE 2015
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Site

Exhibit 2



Parks

Mixed Use Business Park

Retail, Offices and Services

High Density Residential

Public / Semi-Public

Medium Density Residential

KIRBY DR

FRUGE RD

HOOPER RD

1751

1530

1402

11271123

1630

1414

1818

1802

15110

15015

11711

1171111713

14933

15041

15029

15003

14923

11625
11617

11613
11621

11629
11637

11641

11633
11711

11711

1161111613

11701

FLUP MAP

CUP 2015-08

15115 Hooper Rd.

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 386 feet
JUNE 2015
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Site

Exhibit 3



KIRBY DR

FRUGE RD

HOOPER RD

1751

1530

1402

1630

1414

1818

1802

15015

11711

1171111713

15029

14933

15029

15003

14923

11713
11625

11617

11613
11621

11629
11637

11641

11633

11600
11711

11711

11711

1161111613

11711

11701

NOTIFICATION MAP

CUP 2015-08

15115 Hooper Rd.

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 386 feet
JUNE 2015
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Site

Exhibit 4



Exhibit 5

CUP 2015-08 Cell tower at 15115 Hooper Rd. 

Owner Address City State

BETTY M MARTINI BY-PASS TRUST 1306 E ANDERSON RD HOUSTON TX

BOCKEL EARL 15041 HOOPER RD HOUSTON TX

BOCKEL EVELYNN 15029 HOOPER RD HOUSTON TX

BOCKEL JAMES R 1127 FRUGE RD HOUSTON TX

LORANCE SUSIE M 2618 S PEACH HOLLOW CIR PEARLAND TX

MARTINI R H 1303 E ANDERSON RD HOUSTON TX

MAYOR JAMES 2006 ELM CRST SAN ANTONIO TX

MAYOR RICHARD 2121 KIRBY DR UNIT 13NW HOUSTON TX

MAYOR THOMAS 5555 DEL MONTE DR UNIT 1306 HOUSTON TX

RAY & RAYMOND HOLDINGS LLC 15110 HOOPER RD HOUSTON TX

TRUSTY BELINDA KAY BOCKEL 1123 FRUGE RD HOUSTON TX

CHRISTINE LEWIS 3511 PINEMONT A6 HOUSTON TX



Zip

77047-5226

77047-7320

77047-7320

77047-7303

77584-2091

77047-5225

78230-2714

77019-6070

77056-4184

77047-7321

77047-7303

77018





































































































































































C. CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE 
ACTION - PLANNING AND ZONING 
VARIANCE 2015-04

A request of Jack McGuff, applicant; on behalf of Alkesh 
Patel, owner; for approval of a Variance from Section 
2.4.2.6 (c) (1) (c), of the Unified Development Code, 
Ordinance No. 2000-T, to reduce the lot depth requirement 
from 90 feet to 73 feet to allow platting of three single 
family lots located on the southeast corner of Harkey Road 
and Fite Road in Pearland, Texas.



City of Pearland 

3519 Liberty Drive, Pearland, Texas  77581 
Ph: (281) 652-1768  |  Fax: (281) 652-1702   |   www.cityofpearland.com 

   

 
 

 

 
   

 

P&Z AGENDA REQUEST  
 
 

TO:    Planning & Zoning Commission 
 
REQUESTOR:  Jack McGuff 

 
DATE:    6/15/2015 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT: Planning and Zoning Variance 2015-04 

 
 

 Old Business      New Business     Discussion Item    Workshop 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Summary:  A request of Jack McGuff, applicant; on behalf of Alkesh Patel, owner; for 
approval of a Variance from Section 2.4.2.6 (c) (1) (c), of the Unified Development 
Code, Ordinance No. 2000-T, to reduce the lot depth requirement from 90 feet to 73 
feet to allow platting of three single family lots located on the southeast corner of 
Harkey Road and Fite Road in Pearland, Texas. 

 

Staff Recommendation:  Approval 

 



 
 

P&Z 06/15/2015 
Application 2015-04 

Page 1 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
MEETING OF JUNE 15, 2015 
 

 
PLANNING AND ZONING VARIANCE NO. 2015-04 
 
A request of Jack McGuff, applicant; on behalf of Alkesh Patel, owner; for approval of a 
Variance from Section 2.4.2.6 (c) (1) (c), of the Unified Development Code, Ordinance 
No. 2000-T, to reduce the lot depth requirement from 90 feet to 73 feet to allow platting 
of three single family lots located on the southeast corner of Harkey Road and Fite 
Road in Pearland, Texas. 
 
Legal Description: A tract of land containing 0.6078 acres, more or less, out of the 
north half of lots 63 and 64 Figland Orchard Subdivision, H.T. &B.R.R. Company 
Survey, Abstract 240, Brazoria County, Texas, according to the map or plat thereof, 
recorded in volume 3, page 77, of the plat records of Brazoria County, Texas, said 
0.6078 acre tract being more particularly described by metes and bounds as attached. 
 
General Location: Southeast corner of Harkey Road and Fite Road. 
  
 
SUMMARY:  The applicant is requesting a variance from the minimum lot depth of 90 
feet to 73 feet, in the R-2 Single-Family zoning district to allow the creation of three 
single family lots for the construction of three houses along Fite Road. The property is 
an undeveloped lot which is 383.4 feet deep and 73 feet wide fronting Harkey Road.  
The proposed lots would be reconfigured to front Fite Road with each lot having a depth 
of 73 feet.  The corner lot at Harkey Road and Fite Road and the middle lot will both 
have a width of 128 feet while the third lot at the east end will be 127.4 feet wide.  
Section 2.4.2.6 (c) (1) (c) requires a minimum lot depth of 90 feet in R-2. According to 
the applicant’s letter of intent, the proposed reduction from the minimum lot depth would 
allow the platting of the lot to construct single family residences that will be 2,800 
square feet in size.   
 
All three lots will meet the minimum lot area of 7,000 square feet and minimum lot width of 70 
feet required in the R-2 Single Family zoning district.  The corner lot and middle lot will have lot 
areas of 9,344 square feet and the eastern most lot will have a lot area of 9,271 square feet. 

PLATTING STATUS: The applicant proposes to file a Minor Plat creating three single 
family lots to allow for the construction of single family residences.  Prior to approval of 
a plat, the proposed variance must be approved to allow a reduction of 17 feet from the 
minimum lot depth of 90 feet required in the R-2 Single Family zoning district. 
 
CONFORMANCE TO THE LAND USE PLAN:  The Land Use Plan recommends “D – 
10,000 square foot lots” (low Density Residential) for the subject property and all of the 
neighboring lots.  Although the proposed lots will be slightly less than 10,000 square 

 
 

 



 
 

P&Z 06/15/2015 
Application 2015-04 

Page 2 
 

feet in size, the lots meet the intent of the comprehensive plan and will be larger than 
the minimum lot area of 7,000 square feet required in the R-2 Single Family district. 
 
THOROUGHFARE PLAN: Fite Road is shown as a Major Collector Street requiring 80 
feet of right-of-way. Harkey Road is a Secondary Thoroughfare with a minimum right-of-
way of 100 feet.  Any additional right-of-way required for widening will be obtained at the 
time of platting. 
 
IMPACT ON SURROUNDING PROPERTIES: The property is zoned as R-2 - Single 
Family Residential. The property is in an area of transition between the higher densities 
of R-2 Single Family Zoning to the north and RE- Single Family to the south.  The 
properties west of Harkey Road are in the higher density R-3 Single Family zoning 
district.  The H.C. Carleston Elementary School is located on the northwest corner of 
Harkey Road and Fite Road. Granting this variance would allow infill development by 
allowing construction of three single family residences by subdividing a lot that would 
normally be difficult to develop due to the extreme depth to front ratio of 5.25:1 of the 
current lot. 
 
SECTION PERMITTING THE VARIANCE REQUEST:  

        Section 2.2.5.2 Variances 

(a) Purpose, Applicability and Effect. 
(4) Variances from the requirements of Chapters 2, 4, and 5 shall be decided 
by the Zoning Board of Adjustments, and variances from the requirements of 
Chapter 3 shall be decided by the Planning and Zoning Commission. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the requested variance 
from Section 2.4.2.6 (c) (1) (c), of the Unified Development Code, Ordinance No. 2000-
T, to reduce the minimum lot depth requirement from 90 feet to 73 feet to allow the 
platting of three lots for future single family development at the southwest corner of Fite 
Road and Harkey Road for the following reasons: 
 

1. The proposed lot area reduction would promote infill development by allowing the 
lot to be platted for the construction of three single family residences. 

 

2. The Unified Development Code will assure the development of this property is in 
conformance with the goals of the city. 
 

3. The proposed lot will meet the minimum lot width and lot area requirements. 
 



 
 

P&Z 06/15/2015 
Application 2015-04 

Page 3 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 Aerial Map 
 Location Map 
 Zoning Map 
 Application Packet 



FITE RD

HA
RK

EY
 R

D

60506050

6002

3045

3037

6006

6001 6006

6223

6001

3017

15023

15030 AERIEL MAP

P & Z Variance 2015-04

Southeast Corner of
Fite Road and
Harkey Road

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 94 feet
OCTOBER 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Site



RE

R-2

R-3

GB

FITE RD

HA
RK

EY
 R

D

60506050

6002

3057

3045

3037

6006

6001

6013 6001

6006

6223

6001

3017

15023

15030

ZONING MAP

P & Z Variance 2015-04

Southeast Corner of
Fite Road and
Harkey Road

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 94 feet
OCTOBER 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

R-2 Single Family



D-10,000sf Lots (Suburban Res)

Medium Density Residential

Public / Semi-Public

FITE RD

HA
RK

EY
 R

D

60506050

6002

3057

3045

3037

6006

6001

6013 6001

6006

6223

6001

3017

15023

15030 FUTURE LAND USE 
MAP

P & Z Variance 2015-04

Southeast Corner of
Fite Road and
Harkey Road

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 94 feet
OCTOBER 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Site







D. CONSIDERATION & POSSIBLE 
ACTION - PLANNING AND 

ZONING VARIANCE 2015-05
A request of Johnetta Earnest, applicant; on behalf of Johnetta 
and Lee Earnest, owner; for approval of a Variance from Section 
2.4.2.2 (c) (1) (a), of the Unified Development Code, Ordinance 
No. 2000-T,to reduce the lot area requirement from 21,780 
square feet to 20,531.875 square feet for a proposed single-
family structure on property located at 8805 Hawk Road, 
Pearland, Texas.



City of Pearland 

3519 Liberty Drive, Pearland, Texas  77581 
Ph: (281) 652-1768  |  Fax: (281) 652-1702   |   www.cityofpearland.com 

   

 
 

 

 
   

 

P&Z AGENDA REQUEST  
 
 

TO:    Planning & Zoning Commission 
 
REQUESTOR:  Johnetta Earnest 

 
DATE:    6/15/2015 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT: Planning and Zoning Variance 2015-05 

 
 

 Old Business      New Business     Discussion Item    Workshop 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Summary:  A request of Johnetta Earnest, applicant; on behalf of Johnetta and Lee 
Earnest, owner; for approval of a Variance from Section 2.4.2.2 (c) (1) (a), of the 
Unified Development Code, Ordinance No. 2000-T, to reduce the lot area requirement 
from 21,780 square feet to 20,531.875 square feet for a proposed single-family 
structure on property located at 8805 Hawk Road, Pearland, Texas. 
 

 

Staff Recommendation:  Approval 

 



 
 

P&Z 06/15/2015 
Application 2015-05 

Page 1 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
MEETING OF JUNE 15, 2015 
 

 
PLANNING AND ZONING VARIANCE NO. 2015-05 
 
A request of Johnetta Earnest, applicant; on behalf of Johnetta and Lee Earnest, owner; 
for approval of a Variance from Section 2.4.2.2 (c) (1) (a), of the Unified Development 
Code, Ordinance No. 2000-T,to reduce the lot area requirement from 21,780 square 
feet to 20,531.875 square feet for a proposed single-family structure on property located 
at 8805 Hawk Road, Pearland, Texas. 
 
Legal Description: A 0.471 acre tract of land, more or less out of lot 35 of the Allison-
Richey Gulfcoast Homes Company subdivision of Section 20, H.T.&B.R.R. Company 
Survey, Abstract 506, Brazoria County, Texas. 

 
General Location: Northeast corner of Hawk Road and Hillhouse Road 

  
 
SUMMARY:  The applicant is requesting a variance from the minimum lot size of 
21,780 square feet to 20,531.875 square feet, in the RE Single-Family Estate zoning 
district, to allow the creation of one single family lot for the construction of a single 
family residence located at the northeast corner of Hawk Road and Hillhouse Road. The 
property is an undeveloped lot approximately 20,531.875 square feet in area.  Section 
2.4.2.2 (c) (1) (a) requires a minimum lot area of one-half (1/2) acre (21,780 square 
feet). According to the applicant’s letter of intent, the proposed reduction from the 
minimum lot area would allow the platting of the lot to construct a single family 
residence.   
 
The proposed lot meets the minimum lot width of 120 feet with a width of 166.65 feet 
and the minimum lot depth of 90 feet with a lot depth of 123.50 feet.  The width of the 
proposed lot is 46.65 feet above the minimum lot width.  The lot depth surpasses the 
minimum lot depth by 33.5 feet. 
 
The following table shows the required minimum lot area required in the RE Single 
Family zoning district and the lot area proposed by the applicant. 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Table 1 
Required 
Dimensions 

Proposed 
Dimensions 

Lot Width 120 feet 166.65 

Lot Depth 90 feet 123.50 

Lot Area 21,780 sq. feet 20,531.875 sq. ft. 

 
 

 



 
 

P&Z 06/15/2015 
Application 2015-05 

Page 2 
 

PLATTING STATUS: The applicant proposes to file a Minor Plat to allow for the 
construction of a single family residence. Prior to approval of the plat, the proposed 
variance must be approved to allow for a reduction of 1,248.125 square feet  square 
feet of lot area from the minimum required lot area of 21,780 square foot minimum lot 
area in the district RE – Single Family. 
 
CONFORMANCE TO THE LAND USE PLAN:  The Land Use Plan recommends “D – 
10,000 square foot lots” (Low Density Residential) for the subject property and all of the 
neighboring lots.  If granted, the proposed variance from the minimum lot area would 
still conform to the Land Use Plan. 
 
THOROUGHFARE PLAN: Hawk Road is shown as a Minor Collector Street with a 
required right-of –way of 80 feet. Hawk Road is a local street with minimum required 
right-of-way of 50 feet.  Any additional required right-of-way will be obtained at the time 
of platting. 
 
IMPACT ON SURROUNDING PROPERTIES: The property is zoned as RE - Single 
Family Residential. It is completely surrounded by RE zoned property, most of which 
are developed with single family residences on similar sized lots. Granting this variance 
would allow infill development by allowing construction of a single family residence on a 
vacant lot. 
 
SECTION PERMITTING THE VARIANCE REQUEST:  

        Section 2.2.5.2 Variances 

(a) Purpose, Applicability and Effect. 
(4) Variances from the requirements of Chapters 2, 4, and 5 shall be decided 
by the Zoning Board of Adjustments, and variances from the requirements of 
Chapter 3 shall be decided by the Planning and Zoning Commission. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the requested variance 
from Section  2.4.2.2 (c) (1) (a), of the Unified Development Code, Ordinance No. 2000-
T, to reduce the minimum lot area requirement from 21,780 square feet to 20,531.875 
square feet to allow platting of a lot to construct a single family residence located at 
8805 Hawk Road for the following reasons 
 

1. The proposed lot area reduction would promote infill development by allowing the 
lot to be platted for the construction of a single family residence. 

 

2. The Unified Development Code will assure the development of this property is in 
conformance with the goals of the city. 
 

3. The proposed lot will meet the minimum lot width and depth requirements. 



 
 

P&Z 06/15/2015 
Application 2015-05 

Page 3 
 

 

4. Granting the variance will avoid the necessity of rezoning the lot to allow 
construction of a single family residence. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 Aerial Map 
 Location Map 
 Zoning Map 
 Application Packet 

 
 



HAWK RD

HILLHOUSE RD

8802
1905

8801

8733

AERIAL MAP

P & Z Variance 2015-05

8805 Hawk Road

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 47 feet
OCTOBER 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

8805 Hawk Road



RE

HAWK RD

HILLHOUSE RD

8802
1905

8801

8733

ZONING MAP

P & Z Variance 2015-05

8805 Hawk Road

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 47 feet
OCTOBER 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

RE Single Family



D-10,000sf Lots (Suburban Res)

HAWK RD

HILLHOUSE RD

8802
1905

8801

8733

FUTURE LAND USE 
MAP

P & Z Variance 2015-05

8805 Hawk Road

¢

This product is for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable

for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It
does not represent an on-the-ground survey and

represents only the approximate relative location
of property boundaries.

1 inch = 47 feet
OCTOBER 2014
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Site





E. DISCUSSION ITEMS
1. Commissioners Activity Report
2. Comprehensive Plan Update Joint    Workshop
3. Special Workshop Scheduled for June 29, 2015
4. Next P&Z Meeting, July 6, 2015 – Regular Meeting 



V. Adjournment


	P&Z Cover Sheet
	Consent Agenda  Items
	Approval of Minutes
	June 1, 2015 P&Z minutes
	Matters Removed
	New Business
	New Businees item A
	2. CUP 2015-07 6.15.15 JPH Packet
	1. CUP 2015-07. AIS 6.15.15 JPH.pdf
	2. CUP 2015-07 Staff Report
	3. CUP 2015-07 Aerial Map
	4. CUP 2015-07 Zoning Map
	5. CUP 2015-07 FLUP Map
	6. CUP 2015-07 Notification Map
	7. CUP 2015-07 Notification List
	8. CUP 2015-07 Applicant Packet

	New Business item B
	3. CUP 2015-08 6.15.15 JPH Packet
	1. CUP 2015-08. AIS 6.15.15 JPH.pdf
	2. CUP 2015-08 Staff Report
	3. CUP 2015-08 Aerial Map
	4. CUP 2015-08 Zoning Map
	5. CUP 2015-08 FLUP Map
	6. CUP 2015-08 Notification Map
	7. CUP 2015-08 Notification List
	8. CUP 2015-08 Applicant Packet
	2015-08
	2015-08.


	New Business item C
	2015-04 PZV Packet
	1. 2015-04 Agenda Request.pdf
	2. 2015-04 PZV Staff Report
	3. 2015-04 PZV Aeriel
	4. 2015-04 PZV Zoning
	5. 2015-04 PZV FLUP
	6. 2015-04 PZV Site Plan
	7. 2015-04 PZV Survey and Legal

	New Businees item D
	2015-05 PZV Packet
	1. 2015-05 Agenda Request.pdf
	2. 2015-05 PZV Staff Report
	3. 2015-05 PZV Aeriel
	4. 2015-05 PZV Zoning
	5. 2015-05 PZV FLUP
	6. 2015-05 PZV Survey

	Discussion Items
	Adjournment



